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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The Board of Management present their Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022,

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of affordable housing for rent and related services for
tenants and other parties.

Cairn Housing Group consists of:-

= Cairn Housing Assaciation Limited (as Group Parent), a registered social landlord incorporated
in Scotland;

= ANCHO Limited, which is a subsidiary of Cairn Housing Association Limited, and a registered
social landlord incorporated in Scotland and based in North Ayrshire. Its principal activity is the
provision of affordable housing for rent and related services for tenants and other parties: and

= Cairn Homes and Services Limited (trading as Cairn Living), which undertakes a range of non-
charitable and commercial activities including management of homes at mid-market rent, full-
market rent and garage management services.

Review of the Group's business

The recent lifting of operating restrictions and new Scottish Government guidance around Covid-19 are
very welcome, though the full financial year ended March 2022 was dominated by the impact of, and
responses to, the global Covid-19 pandemic. Over the full year, at national and organisational level, this
led to major disruption to services, working arrangements with significantly negative impacts on the
lives of customers, communities and staff throughout the country. The pandemic has had the same
negative impact on our contractors and suppliers and local authority partners with whom we have
continued to work positively.

The year has seen Cairn Housing Group respond to the changing environment and reorganise service
arrangements that has ensured that, despite the restrictions and the hardships — services were still able
to be provided to customers within the limits required by the Scottish Government and good practice in
health and safety. The welfare of customers and staff safety has been paramount.

During the second full year of Covid-19 restrictions the organisation has continued to show itself to be
flexible, resilient and determined to respond positively and continue to deliver our strategic objectives
and service obligations to customers in the face of these challenges. All staff, board members and our
contractor partners are thanked for all their continued efforts and the last 12 months has shown the
strength, skills and core values of Cairn Housing Group.

Highlights during the year have included:-

* Following the very positive tenant ballot result last year, the final stages of the transfer process
took place during the year, and on 1st April 2022, Pentland Housing Association Limited
formally transferred their engagements to Cairn Housing Association Limited, The housing
stock and tenants of Pentland have now successfully transferred and services to customers in
Caithness iz being delivered by the new combined team. Operational integration continues and
work is well underway to begin to deliver the Tenant Promises including the affordable rent
guarantee — including a rent freeze in the first year, locally based services, and preparation for
delivery of the significant £6.2 million stock investment programme.

«  From 1st April 2022, the Group now includes Pentland Community Enterprises Limited (PCE)
including the significant garage portfolio in Caithness. On 1% April 2022, the trade and assets
of Cairn Homes and Services Limited were transferred inta PCE. Cairn Homes and Services
Limited will now be struck off.

=l I



CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Review of the Group's business (continued)

The Covid-19 restrictions over the year meant that our planned programme of stock
improvement was adversely affected, though with delivery partners, we still achieved a
substantial investment programme of over £7 million across the Group in our existing homes
across Scotland, including delivery of investment promises to ANCHO tenants. This has directly
improved the quality of life for tenants and supported our commitment to our vision of Great
Homes including investment in new kitchens, new bathrooms, energy efficiency work and
heating systems. The next two years will see a significant increase in the scale of stock
improvements;

As part of our active newbuild development programme, we completed 113 new homes, with
preparation well advanced to enable us to deliver a further 173 new homes in the coming twelve
months to meet local housing needs which will be the highest numbers of new homes built by
the Cairn Group in aver 10 years;

Continued progress has been made in the delivery of the Tenant Promises to ANCHO tenants
as part of the commitments in the 2018 constitutional partnership, including over £1.3million of
stock investment (with some Covid-19 delivery restrictions) including new roofs, boilers,
rewiring, windows and doors, the affordable rent guarantee and continued locally based
sanvices;

Work on further integration between Cairn Housing Association and ANCHO has continued
with shared IT systems, policies and processes and joint management across the Group, and
the two Boards have made a joint commitment to begin a governance integration project and
consultation with tenants, with a view to moving towards a proposals for full transfer of
engagements by 2024

The new Executive Team consisting of the Chief Executive and four Directors has now been
fully in place for a year and are charged with advising the board and the delivery of the business
plan and services across all parts of the Group, as part of the ongoing operational integration
of Cairm Housing Association and ANCHO;

Business performance on key performance indicators remain satisfactory or good in most
areas. Significant improvements have been made in customer contact call responses,
increases in the proportion of digital enquiries and substantial improvement in void rent loss
performance and average void re-let times within the context of significant Covid-19 impacts;

Despite the significant challenges of Covid-19 and the disruption to the wider economy and
employment, the Group's income management has held up very well, with very good
performance on rent collection for ANCHO at 100% and an excellent 103% for Cairn Housing
Association;

The Tenancy Sustainment team has again secured over £900,000 of direct additional payments
to customers through pro-active advice and support on benefit entitlement. This has been
particularly important as the wider economic challenges and cost of living crisis begins to impact
on tenants and communities;

The Group continued its work on staff engagement including a programme of learning and
development for staff, staff mental health and wellbeing sessions during the Covid-19
restrictions, and access to a range of individual wellbeing support and also approved a new
Equality & Diversity Strategy and a new Procurement Strategy,




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Review of the Group’s business (continued)

+ The Group submitted its third Annual Assurance Statement to the Scottish Housing Regulator
(SHR) in October 2021 setting out confirmation that Cairn Housing Association Limited and
ANCHO Limited both comply with all required statutory and regulatory requirements. The
Statement committed to a continuous improvement in preparations for next year's statement;

= Compliance with regulatory standards and best practice will continue to drive our governance
and management of the Group and our positive working relationship with the Regulatar;

= The Group delivered a number of successful Community Development projects in communities
across Scotland through the Cairn Community Fund, largely focussed on support for vulnerable
customers and communities through the global pandemic including support to local foodbanks:

= Activity around the new Tenant Participation Strategy has been restricted during the Covid-19
restrictions, but a range of digital consultations have taken place and we aim to increase
opportunities for tenants to engage through a range of routes in coming years:

* The Group's Board Development & Succession Palicy continues to be applied to strengthen
and develop our governance and compliance with regulatory and good practice requirements:
and

« Following extended consultation with staff and our recognised trades union, a new Pay &
Reward Policy was intreduced for all Cairn staff, to include fair pay, benchmarking and spot
salaries for all staff to support recruitment and retention of staff in a competitive jobs market,

Financial performance

The Association's operating surplus increased from £1,926,311 in 2020/21 to £2,249,621 in 2021/22
mainly due to the impairment of social housing units of £799,298 in 2020/21. The Association generated
a deficit for the year of £15,644 (2021: £3,157,693).

The Group generated a surplus after taxation of £349,241 (2021 restated: deficit (£2,242,522)) which
included the significant items noted above. ANCHO returned an overall surplus of £395,510 (2021:
£866,569) for the full year ended 31 March 2022 with Cairn Homes and Services generating a profit
after tax of £72,149 (2021: £73,172). The Group surplus for the year has been taken to the Revenue
Reserve,

The Group acknowledges that effective treasury management supports the achievement of its business
and service objectives. The Group maintains an adeguate loan portfolio to support its business
activities.




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Future Developments

The reduction of Covid-19 restrictions is welcome and enables the organisation to now largely deliver
services unimpeded, however the operating and economic environment continues to be challenging,
particularly with the “cost of living" crisis, rapidly increasing energy costs and spirally inflation bringing
costs pressures. The Group continues to be self-aware and pro-active in making important decisions
on finance and strategy and set a direction to continue to build a resilient and successful organisation.
The Board and the management team of Cairn Housing Association Limited, in their role as Group
parent, actively monitor risks and remain confident about the future of the Group as a whole and are
focused on delivering our vision of Great Homes, Great Services, and Great People. We will continue
our commitment to continue ta madernise and change where required - including further delivery of our
Digital Strategy and to operate the business in the long-term interests of current and future customers
in communities throughout Scotland.

The Group's commercial subsidiary will be Pentland Community Enterprises Limited (PCE), from 1st
April 2022, with Cairn Living's (Cairn Homes and Services Limited) trade and assets being transferred
to PCE and struck off later this year. This will combine management of all the Group's mid-market rent
properties, the garage portfolio, factoring and other commercial initiatives in future. There are ongoing
plans to increase the Company’s activities in the coming year.

As part of our business and financial planning we have the financial capacity to sustain our new build
development activity in the coming years. We intend to complete the delivery of our significant new
build development programme over the next five years, with decisions to be made on the size and
balance of the programme along with the requirements for retrofit of existing stock, and to develop a
new Energy & Assets Strategy to contribute to the Scottish Government's national strategic objective
of moving to Net Zero by 2045.

Growth & Partnerships

The transfer of Pentland Housing Association Limited into Cairn Housing Association Limited has further
strengthened the Group's financial position, with plans to further improve services and deliver
efficiencies, and consolidating our operational presence in Caithness.

Proposals for a full merger of Cairn Housing Association and ANCHO through a possible transfer of
engagements in 2024 will be developed over the next year with full consultation with ANCHO tenants.

We will also continue to explore collaboration and potential organisational and service partnerships with
other housing associations, as we look to strengthen business resilience and capacity to have a greater
impact on the quality of lives of our customers and communities throughout Scotland.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Group has updated its Sirategic Risk Register to reflect the recent experiences and ongoing
challenges of the Covid-19 related lockdowns and changed operational environment. The Cairn Group
continues to be a strong and resilient social business. There continue to be a number of opportunities
ahead such as growth through new build development and constitutional partnership opportunities.

We will continue to robustly identify and manage our risk profile and take mitigating actions as required
and to pay close attention to the wider financial, economic and political environments, such as the
continuing economic and supply impacts of Brexit, and the constitutional future of the country, which
may affect our business and our customers. We will continue to develop our business continuity
planning and oversee key risks such as securing income to the crganisation and our response to
ongoing changes to welfare and social security, the wider financial environment, regulatory compliance
and our asset management strategy.




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Key performance indicators

The Group continues to closely monitor key performance indicators, including those required under the
Annual report on The Scottish Social Housing Charter. We also pay particular attention to key financial
indicators on gearing and interest cover to ensure ongoing financial stability and to meet our lending
covenants.

Governance

Cairn Housing Association Limited has a Board of Management elected by the shareholding members
of the Association at the AGM each year. The Board directs the strategy, sets policies, oversees the
overall direction and monitors the business plan of the Association and its two subsidiaries, ANCHO
Limited and Cairn Homes and Services Limited.

The Board also ensures appropriate levels of assurance and strategic risk management, including
external advice where appropriate, and compliance with regulatory standards. The members of the
Board of Management are currently unpaid, other than expenses.

We review the Board Succession & Development Plan each year, following annual personal
development meetings, to ensure the appropriate level and mix of skills and experience and keeping
up to date with regulatory requirements and best practice standards. There were 2 resignations from
ANCHO Board during 2021/22. There were also 2 resignations from the Cairn Homes and Services
Limited Board.

Cairn Housing Association Limited and ANCHO Limited are members of the Scottish Federation of
Housing Associations and we continue positive working relationships with our Regulatars, (SHR and
OSCR), local authorities and other partners.

The Group is committed to continuous improvement and the Board sets challenging business targets,
which are regularly monitored and reviewed by the Board and Executive Team.

Group governance arrangements include an Audit & Performance Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and a revised Tenant Participation Strategy working with the Group to provide an additional
level of scrutiny and to support improvement activities. There are also Board Meetings for ANCHO and
Cairn Homes and Services Limited. The boards of ANCHO and Cairn Housing Association introduced
joint governing bodies meeting during 2021/22 whilst still maintaining the distinet governance
administration and minutes of decisions as required in the regulatory standards.




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The Board of Management and Executive Officers

The Board of Management and executive officers of the Association are listed on the first page of the
financial statements. Each member of the Board of Management holds one fully paid share of £1 in
Cairn Housing Association. The executive officers of the Association hold no interest in the Association's
share capital and although not having the legal status of directors they act as executives within the
authority delegated by the Board. The Schedule of Delegated Authorities ensures the appropriate
balance of enabling operational effectiveness with proper board oversight and decisions making where
required.

Statement of the Board of Management’s Responsibilities

The Board of Management is responsible for preparing the annual report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and registered social housing legislation
require the Board of Management to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Association and the Group and of the income and
expenditure of the Association and the Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements
the Board is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

® prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Group or Assaociation will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Association and to enable it to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the
Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2018 as issued by the
Scottish Housing Regulator. It has general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the
assets of the Association and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Board of Management is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the Association's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdiction.




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Statement on internal financial control

The Board of Management is responsible for the Group's and the Parent Association's system of
internal financial control.

Internal financial controls are those procedures established by the senior management team, and
reviewed by the Group Audit & Performance Committee, in order to provide reasonable assurance on
the safeguarding of assets and the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of
financial information used within the Group and the Parent Association or for publication. Such a system
of controls can provide only reasonable, and neot absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The approach adopted by the Board of Management to provide effective financial control can be
summarised as follows:

(a) An appropriate control environment has been created by careful recruitment and training of
staff and provision of comprehensive guidance on the standards and controls to be applied
throughout the Group, A comprehensive programme of internal audit covering over time all the
Group's main activities is on-going. Reports are made to the Group Audit & Performance
Committee with appropriate action taken where necessary.

{b) Management information systems have been developed to provide accurate and timeous data
on all aspects of the business. Management accounts comparing actual results against budget
are presented to the Board of Management quarterly.

(c) Major business risks and their financial implications are assessed by reference to established
criteria,

(d) The financial implications of major business risks are controlled by means of delegated
authorities, which reserve significant matters to the Board of Management for decision,
segregation of duties in appropriate areas and physical controls over assets and access to
records as detailed in the Financial Regulations.

(e} The Board of Management monitors the operation of the internal financial control system by
considering regular reports from management and the external and internal auditors and
ensures appropriate corrective action is taken to address any reported weaknesses.

While retaining overall responsibility for internal financial control, the Board of Management has
delegated the day-to-day administration of the Group and the Parent Association to the executive
officers,

In May 2021, it was reported to the Chief Executive, the Board, and then to our external auditor, Azets,
that in the previous weeks there has been four fraudulent invoices presented to Cairn Housing
Association for payment by an unknown third party/parties, using hacking/phishing email identities.
Three of these invoices were paid to the total value of £35,683. One further attempted fraudulent invoice
was blocked and not paid. Our internal auditor RSM were commissioned to undertake a special audit
and this was presented to the Group’s Audit & Performance Committee in July 2021 and to the Cairn
HA Board in August 2021. Recommendations for improved contrals, training and other follow up actions
were agreed,

The Board of Management has reviewed the system of internal financial control in the Group and the
Association during the year ended 31 March 2022 including the improvements introduced in respect of
the fraud noted above. No other weaknesses were found in internal financial control which could result
in material losses, contingencies, or uncertainties which require disclosure in the financial statements
or in the auditors’ report en the financial statements.




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (INCORPORATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Post balance sheet events

On 1st April 2022, Pentland Housing Association Limited formally transferred their engagements to
Cairn Housing Association Limited. The housing stock and tenants of Pentland have now successfully
transferred and services to customers in Caithness are being delivered by the new combined team.

From 1st April 2022, the Group now includes Pentland Community Enterprises Limited (PCE) including
the significant garage portfolio in Caithness. On 15 April 2022, the trade and assets of Cairn Homes
and Services Limited were transferred into PCE. Cairn Homes and Services Limited will now be struck
off.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

To the knowledge and belief of each of the persons who are members of the Board of Management at
the time the report is approved:

o So far as the Board members are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Group’s
auditor is unaware; and
e Helshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Board member in order to

make himself/herself aware of any relevant information, and to establish that the Group'’s auditor
is aware of the information.

Auditor

The auditor, Azets Audit Services, have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and
will be proposed for reappointment at the Annual General Meeting.

The Report of the Board of Management (incorporating the Strategic Report) has been approved by the
Board of Management:

of the Board

MacGilp
ecretary

Date: 1 September 2022




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION
LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cairn Housing Assaciation Limited (the "Parent Association")
and its subsidiaries (the "Group”") for the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the Group and
Association Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Association Statements of Changes
in Capital and Reserves, the Group and Association Statements of Financial Pasition, the Group and
Association Statements of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102
‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),

In our opinion, the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and the Parent Association's affairs as at
31 March 2022 and of the Group's and the Parent Association's income and expenditure for
the year then ended,

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefits Societies (Group
Accounts) Regulations 1969, Part 6 of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Determination
of Accounting Requirements 2019 issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group and Parent Association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board of Management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the
Parent Association’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for izssue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Board of Management with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditar's report thereon. The Board of Management is responsible for the other
infarmation contained within the annual report, Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION
LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Other information (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit. or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infarmation, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained by the Parent
Association; or

» the Parent Association has not kept proper accounting records; or

« the Parent Association's financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account;
or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board of Management

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Management 's Responsibilities set out on page
6, the Board of Management is respansible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Board of Management
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Parent Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Management either intend to liquidate the Group ar the Parent Association or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilties is available on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.ora.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

10



CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION
LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above and an the FRC's website, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

We obtain and update our understanding of the Group and the Parent Assaciation, their activities, their
control environment, and likely future developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory
framework applicable and how the Group and the Parent Association are complying with that
framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. This includes consideration of the risk of acts by the Group and the Parent Association that
were contrary lo applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities,
including non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

« the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations;

= we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the Group and the Parent Association
through discussions with the Board members and the senior management team, and from our
knowledge and experience of the RSL sector;

= we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material
effect on the financial statements or the operations of the Group and the Parent Association,
including the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and
Community Benefits Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, Part 6 of the Haousing
(Scotland) Act 2010, the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2019 issued by the
Scottish Housing Regulator and taxation, data protection, anti-bribery, employment,
environmental and health and safety legislation:

* Wwe assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified abave through
making enquiries of the senior management team and the Board of Management and
inspecting legal correspondence; and

= identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team reqularly and the team
remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

In respanse ta the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed
procedures which included, but were not limited to:

= agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation:

= reading the minutes of meetings of the Board of Management and relevant sub-committees:

= enquiring of the senior management team and the Board of Management as to actual and
potential litigation and claims;

» reviewing legal and professional fees paid in the year for indication of any actual and potential
litigation and claims; and

« reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the Scottish Housing Regulator, OSCR and the Group's
and Parent Association's legal advisors.

11



CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION
LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's and the Parent Association's financial statements to
material misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might accur, by:

« making enquiries of the senior management team and the Board of Management as to where
they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and
alleged fraud; and

« considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

« performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

s tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

« assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates
were indicative of potential bias; and

s investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there iz a risk that we will not detect all irregularities,
ineluding those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with
regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware
of instances of non-compliance. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Association's members, as a body, in accordance with Section
87 of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Parent Association’s members, as a body, those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone ather than the Parent Association and the Parent
Association’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Azets Audit Services
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Titanium 1

King's Inch Place
Renfrew

PA4 BWF

Date:

Azets Audit Services is eligible for appointment as auditor of the Group and Parent Association by virtue
of its eligibility for appointment as auditor of a company under section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006,
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

In addition to our audit of the Financial Statements, we have reviewed your statement on page 7
concerning the Group's and the Parent Association's compliance with the information required by the
Regulatory Standards in respect of internal financial control contained within the publication “Our
Regulatory Framework” and associated Regulatory Advisory Notes which are issued by the Scottish
Housing Regulator.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out our review having regard to the requirements on corporate governance matters within
Bulletin 2009/4 issued by the Financial Reparting Council. The Bulletin does not require us to review
the effectiveness of the Group's and the Parent Association's procedures for ensuring compliance with
the guidance notes, nor to investigate the appropriateness of the reason given for non-compliance,

Opinion

In our apinion the Statement on Internal Financial Control on pages 7 has provided the disclosures
required by the relevant Regulatory Standards within the publication "Our Regulatory Framework” and
associated Regulatory Advisory Motes issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal
financial control and is consistent with the information which came to our attention as a result of our
audit work on the Financial Statements.

Through our enquiry of certain members of the Board of Management and Officers of the Group and
the Parent Association and examination of relevant documents, we have satisfied ourselves that the
Board of Management's Statement on Internal Financial Cantrol appropriately reflects the Group's and
the Parent Association's compliance with the information required by the relevant Regulatory Standards
in respect of internal financial control contained within the publication "Our Regulatory Framework” and
associated Regulatory Advisory Notes issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal
financial control.

Azets Audit Services, Statutory Auditor

Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
Chartered Accountants

Titanium 1

King's Inch Place

Renfrew

PA4 BWF

Date:

Azets Audil Services is eligible for appointment as auditor of the Group and Parent Association by
virtue of its eligibility for appeintment as auditor of a company under section 1212 of the Companies
Act 20086,




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Turnover
Operating expenditure

Operating surplus

{Loss)/gain on sale of property, plant and
equipment

Interest receivable

Interest payable and similar charges

Loan breakage costs

(3ai on revaluation of investment properties

Surplus for the year before taxation
Taxation

Surplus after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain/{loss) in respect of the SHAPS
defined benefit pension scheme

Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of the Strathclyde
defined benefit pansion scheme

Total comprehensive income for the year

The results for the year relate wholly to continuing activities.

The notes form part of these financial statements.

MNotes

10
11

21
14c

13

23
23

2022
£

21,662,354
(18,637,622)

3,024,732

(5,239)
37,112

(2,716,388)
11,797

352,014
(2,773)

349,241

1,483,000
602,000

2,434,241

Reslated
2021
£

21,275,370
(18,274,935)

3,000,435
207,353
134,503

(3,241,972)
(2,342,841)

(2,242,522)

(2,242 522)

{2,533,000)
{113,000
(4,888 522)




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Turnover
Operating expenditure

Operating surplus

{Loss)/gain on sale of property, plant and
equipment

Interest receivable

Interest payable and similar charges

Loan breakage costs

Gain on revaluation of investment properties

Surplus/(deficit) for the year before taxation
Taxation

Surplus/{deficit) after taxation
Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain/{loss) in respect of the SHAPS
defined benefit pension schemea

Total comprehensive income for the year

Notes

10
11
32
21
14d

13

23

The results for the year relate wholly to continuing activities.

The notes form part of these financial statements.

2022
E

18,796,865
(16,547,244)

2,249,621
(5,239)

88,079
(2,612,022)
263,917

(15,644)

(15,644)

1,483,000

1,467,356

2021

18,254,720
(16,328,409)

1,926 311

207,353

183,451
(3,131,967)
(2,342,841)

(3,157,693)

{3,157 693)

(2,533,000)
(5,690,693)
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Balance at 1 April 2021 as restated
Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of shares during the year
Cancelled shares during the year

Balance at 31 March 2022

AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Balance at 1 April 2020 as restated
Total comprehensive income for the year as
restated

Balance at 31 March 2021 as restated

The notes form part of these financial statements.

Share Revenue Total
capital reserve reserves
£ £ £

838 63,664,136 63,664,224

- 2,434,241 2,434,241

2 - 2
(5) - (5)

85 66,098,377 66,098,462

Share Revenue Total
capital resene resenves
E £ £

88 68,552 658 68,552,746
- (4,888, 522) {4,888 522)

a8 53,664,136 63,664,224
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Balance at 1 April 2021 as restated

Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of shares during the year
Cancelled shares during the year

Balance at 31 March 2022

AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

Balance at 1 April 2020 as restated
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2021 as restated

The notes form part of these financial statements,

Share Revenue Total
capital reserve reserves
£ £ £
BE 48,766,023 48,766,111
- 1,467,356 1,467,356
2 - 2
(5) - (5)
as 50,233,379 50,233,464
Share Revenue Total
capifal reserne resanes
£ £ £
88 54456716 54,456 804
- {5,680,683) (5690 693)
88 48,766,023 48766 111
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Tangible fixed assets and
investments

Housing properties
Investment properties
Other fixed assets

Current assets

Debtors

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year

SHAPS defined benefit
pension scheme
Strathclyde defined benefit
pension scheme

Deferred taxation

Net assets
Capital and reserves

Share capital
Revenue reserves

Notes

14a
14c
14e

16
17a
17b

18

19

23

23
24

25
26

Restated
2022 2021
£ £ & £
157,349,654 139,308,094
9,246,424 8,187,576
1,219,700 1,247,865
167,815,778 148,743,535
2,897,288 1,638,975
31,696,991 7,164,801
36,917 10,219,497
34,631,196 19,023,273
(8,243,219) (5,302,095)
26,387,977 13,721,178
194,203,755 162 464,713
(128,093,632) (96,272,248)
(11,661) (2,008,165)
- (520,000)
= (76)
66,098,462 63,664,224
85 88
66,098,377 63,664,136
66,098,462 63,664,224

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Management on 1 September 2022 and signed on

Chairperson

Vice Chairperson

Secretary

The notes form part of these financial statements.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Tangible fixed assets and
investments

Housing properties
Investment properties
Other fixed assets
Investments

Current assets

Debtors due after one year
Debtors within one year
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year

SHAPS defined benefit
pension scheme

Net assets
Capital and reserves

Share capital
Revenue reserves

its behalf by:

Notes

14b
14d
14f
14g

15

17a
17b

18

23

25
26

2022

£ £

135,036,645

8,911,424

1,147,490

1

145,095,560
1,460,000
3,129,269
30,889,679
36,917
35,515,865
(7,077,951)

28,437,914

173,533,474

(123,288,349)

(11,661)

50,233,464
85
50,233,379

50,233,464

Chairperson
Vice Chairperson

Secretary

The notes form part of these financial statements.

Restated

2021

£ £

117,656,728

7,600,456

1,175,015

1

126,432,200
1,460,000
1,392,171
6,672,676
10,219,497
19,744,344
(4,433,393)

15,310,951

141,743,151

(90,968,875)

(2,008,165)

48,766,111

88

48,766,023

48,766,111

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Management on 1 September 2022 and signed on
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Payments to acquire and improve housing stock
Purchase of other fixed assets

HAG and other capital grants received

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets and investment

properties

Maovement of cash from/{to) investments
Interest received

Improvement to investment properties

Taxation paid

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid

Housing loans repaid

Housing loans received

Loan breakage costs

Arrangement fee

SHAPS past service deficit payment
Issue of share capital

MNet change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

MNotes

27

17b

17a

17a

2022 2021
£ £
9,246,755 7,665,043
(22,641,246) (14,586,632}
{229,918) (145,831)
10,078,436 9427015
21,0098 280,579
10,182,580 6,812,016
37,112 128,503
(69,910) {14,028)
{2,621,937) 1,912,622
{2,849) (9,638)
(2,667,138) (3.233,972)
{1,237,420) (17.5926,629)
23,000,000 17,000,000
- {2 .342,641)
(220,890) {500,000)
(551,754) (654,372)
2 E
18,322,800 {7,657,814)
24,944,769 1,910,213
6,752,222 4,842 009
31,686,991 6,752,222
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

(i) Analysis of changes in net debt

Other non-

At 1 April cash At 31 March
2021 Cash flows changes 2022
£ E £ £

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash 7,164,801  24,532190 - 31,696,991
Overdrafts {412,579 412,579 - -
6,752,222 24,944,769 - 31,696,991
Current asset investments 10,219,497 (10,182,580) - 36,917

Borrowings

Debt due within one year (1,203,051) 1,237,420 (1,232,830) (1,198,561)
Debt due after one year (75,281,797) (23,000,000) 1,374,945 (96,906,852)
(76,484,848) (21,762,580) 142,015 (98,105,413)
Total (59,513,129) (7,000,391) 142,015 (66,371,505)

The notes form part of these financial statements,
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Notes 2022 2021
£ £

MNet cash generated from operating activities 27 6,918,060 6,444,930
Cash flow from investing activities
Payments to acquire and improve housing stock (21,245,541) {14,008,813)
Purchase of other fixed assets (225,811) {145,831)
HAG and other capital grants received 10,078,436 9,427,015
Proceads from sale of tangible fixed assets and
investment properties 20,316 290,348
Movement of cash balance from/{to) investments 17b 10,182,580 6,812,016
Interest received 88,079 178,451
Improvement to investment properties (69,910) (14,028)

(1,171,851) 2,538 158

Taxation paid =

Cash flow from financing activities

Loan to AMCHO Limited - {250,000)
Interest paid (excluding amortised fees) (2,573,772) {3,129,410)
Housing loans repaid (748,723) (17,447, 728)
Haousing loans received 23,000,000 17,000,000
Arrangement fee (220,890) {500,000)
Loan breakage costs - (2,342 841)
Repayment of other loans {21,490) -
Issue of share capital 2 -
SHAPS past service deficit payment (551,754) {654,372)

18,883,373 (7,324,3517)
MNet change in cash and cash equivalents 24,629,582 1,658,737
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 17a 6,260,087 4,601,360
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year i7a 30,889,679 6,260,097




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

(i) Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 April Other non- At 31 March
2021 Cash flows cash changes 2022
£ £ £ £

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash 6,672,676 24,217,003 - 30,889,679
Qverdrafts {412,579) 412,579 - -
6,260,097 24,629,582 - 30,889,679
Current asset investments 10,219,497 (10,182,580) - 36,917

Borrowings

Debt due within ane year (715,519) 748,723 (735,372) {702,168)
Debt due after one year (70,001,812) (23,000,000) 877,387 (92,124,425)
(70,717,331) (22,251,277) 142,015 (92,826,593)
Total (54,237,737)  (7,804,275) 142,015 (61,899,997)

The notes form part of these financial statements.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

1. General Information

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
and comply with the requirements of the Determination of Housing Requirements 2019 as issued by
the Scottish Housing Regulator and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Social Housing
Providers issuad in 2018. The principal accounting policies are set out below,

The preparation of these financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's and
the Association's accounting policies (note 3),

The Association is defined as a public benefit entity and thus complies with all disclosure requirements
relating to public benefit entities.

These financial statements represent the results of the Group and Association and are presented in EGPB.

The Association is a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society Limited by shares and is incorporated
in Scotland. The Association is a registered social landlord (HEP218) and a registered charity
(SC016647). The registered address of the Group is Bellevue House, 22 Hopetoun Street, Edinburgh
EH7 4GH.

2, Principal Accounting policies
{a) Basis of accounting and consolidation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, subject to the revaluation of
certain fixed assets, and in accordance with applicable accounting standards and statements of
recommended practice. The effect of events relating to the year ended 31 March 2022, which occurred
before the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board of Management have been included
in the statements to the extent required to show a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31 March
2022 and of the results for the year ended on that date.

(b) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis by the Board of Management
as group surpluses are expected in 2022/23 and 2023/24, maintaining a healthy cash position across
the Group. The Association is expected to generate manageable deficits. This going concern review
includes the Board's assessment of the impact of COVID-12 and the current inflationary and cost of
living pressures on the Group's and the Association's operations and financial performance in the 12
months following the signing of these financial statements. Thus, the Board continues to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The transfer of engagements from Pentland HA to Cairn HA concluded on 1% April 2022. At this point
Cairn Homes and Services Limited will transfer into Pentland Community Enterprises Limited. As a
conseguence of this, the financial statements of Cairn Homes and Services Limited for the year ended
31 March 2022 have been prepared on a basis other than going concern.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

{c) Turnover

Turnover represents rental and service charge income, fees receivable and revenue grants receivable
from local authorities and from the Scottish Government. Also included is any income from first tranche
shared ownership disposals and management fees from the factoring of properties for private owners as
the provision of factoring services is accounted for on an agency basis.

(d) Apportionment of management expenses

Direct employee, administration and operating costs have been appartioned to the relevant sections of
the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the basis of the number of units (excluding garages) relevant
to that area of the business.

The costs of cyclical and major repairs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
year which they are incurred.

{e) Interest receivable

Interest receivable is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest
method,

(f)  Interest payable

Finance costs are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the debt using
the effective interest method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amaount.
Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument.

{g) Tangible fixed assets - housing properties

Housing properties are stated at deemed cost based on an Existing Use Value at 1 April 2014. Erom
this date, housing properties have been accounted for under historical cost. The development cost of
housing properties includes the following:

(i) cost of acquiring land and buildings:
(i) development expenditure, and
(i) internal administrative costs relating to the acquisition and development of housing properties,

These costs are termed "qualifying costs” by the Scottish Government for approved Housing
Association Grant. Expenditure on schemes is written off in the year unless it is recognised that the
schemes will be developed to completion. Refurbishment expenditure on existing properties is
capitalised to the extent that the expenditure represents improvements to the properties or replacement
of components.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

(h) Shared ownership transactions

First tranche proceeds arising from part-owners' purchase of equity in shared ownership schemes |s
regarded as sales of assets held for sale and is treated as turnover. The percentage of development
costs representing the estimated first tranche percentages to be sold is shown as current assets until
sold, Remaining costs are treated as fixed assets and sales taking place after the initial purchase are
accounted for as disposals of fixed assets.

(i} Gowvernment capital grants

Government capital grants, at amounts approved by The Scottish Government or local authorities, are
paid directly to the Group as required to meet its liabilities during the development process. This is
treated as a deferred capital grant and is released to income in accordance with the accrual model over
the useful life of the asset it relates to on completion of the development phase. The accrual model
requires the Group to recognise income on a systematic basis over the period in which the Group
recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.

{iy Government revenue grants

Government revenue grants are recognised using the accrual model which means the Group
recagnises the grant in income on a systematic basis over the period in which the Group recognises
the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.

(k) Non-government capital and revenue grants

Non-government capital and revenue grants are recognised using the performance madel. If there are
no performance conditions attached the grants are recognised as revenue when the grants are received
or receivable. A grant that imposes specific future performance related conditions on the recipient is
recognised as revenue only when the perfarmance related conditions are met.

A grant received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

(I} Depreciation

Housing properties

Housing properties under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated, These are reclassified
as housing properties held for letting on practical completion of construction,

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Housing properties held for letting are considered to comprise the following components which are
depreciated over estimated economic lives as follows:

Component Useful Economic Life
Structure B0 years
Kitchens 20 years
Bathrooms 25 years
Central heating systems (excl boilers) 30 years
Boilers 25 years
Lifts 25 years
Roofs 60 years
Windows and doors 25 years
Rewiring 30 years
LD2 25 years
Fire doors 25 years
Fire stopping 25 years
| Solar panels 25 years

In the year of replacement, the Net Book Value of the component being replaced is written off and is
included in the depreciation charge for the year in accordance with the RSL SORP.

Shared ownership housing properties
Depreciated over 80 years.

Dther fixed assets
Depreciation is provided on other fixed assets at rates calculated to write off cost evenly over expected
useful lives as follows:

Heritable office properties Over 60 years
Office furniture and equipment 4 to 10 years
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, Principal Accounting policies (continued)

{m) Pensions (Mote 24)
SHAPS

Up until 1 April 2014, Cairn HA participated in The Scottish Housing Associations' Defined Benefits
Pengion Scheme (SHAPS) and retirement benefits to employees are funded by the contributions from
all participating employers and employees in the scheme. Payments are made in accordance with
periodic calculations by consulting actuaries and are based on pension costs applicable across the
various participating Associations taken as a whole.

On 1 April 2014 these employees were transferred to a Defined Contribution Scheme within the Scottish
Housing Association Pension Scheme (SHAPS). All new staff members are eligible to participate in a
defined contribution scheme provided by Standard Life.

The SHAPS defined benefit is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme and as such the amount charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of pension costs and other post retirement benefits
is the estimated regular cost of providing the benefits accrued in the year, adjusted to reflect variations
from that cost, The interest cost is included within other finance costsfincome. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from new valuations and from updating valuations to the reporting date are recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets held separately from the Association in separate
trustee administered funds. Full actuarial valuations, by a professionally qualified actuary, are obtained at
least every three years, with an accounting update prepared by the actuary to reflect current conditions at
each reporting date.

The pension scheme assets are measured at fair value. The pension scheme liabilities are measured
using the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term and currency. A pension scheme asset is recognised on the Statement of
Financial Position only to the extent that the surplus may be recovered by reduced future cantributions or
to the extent that the trustees have agreed a refund from the scheme at the reporting date. A pension
scheme liability is recognised to the extent that the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to settle
the liability.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, Principal Accounting policies (continued)
(n) Pensions (Note 24) {continued)
Strathclyde Pensions Trust

ANCHO participates in the centralised Strathclyde Pensions Trust defined benefits pension scheme and
retirement benefits to employees of the Association are funded by the contributions from all participating
employers and employees in the scheme. Payments are made to the Trust in accordance with periodic
calculations by consulting actuaries and are based on pension costs applicable across the various
participating employers taken as a whole.

The expected cost to the Association of pensions is charged to Total Comprehensive Income so as to
spread the cost of pensions over the service lives of the employees in the scheme taken as a whole.

The difference between the fair value of the assets held in the Association's defined benefit pension
scheme and the scheme's liabilities measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method are
recognized in the Group's Statement of Financial Position as a pension scheme liability.

Standard Life and AVIVA Auto Enrolment scheme

The Assaciation operates these two defined contribution schemes. Employer contributions are charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis,

{n) Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
straight line basis over the lease term,

(o) Investment properties

Investment properties are held at market value with any changes in market value recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{p) Investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost, less any provisions required where there has been a
permanent diminution in their value.

{(q) Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment.
(r) Rental arrears

Rental arrears represent amounts due by tenants for rental of affordable housing properties at the year
end. Rental arrears are reviewed regularly by management and written down to the amount deemed
recoverable. Any provision deemed necessary is shown alongside gross rental arrears in note 17.

(s} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash s represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liguid investments that mature in no
more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2, Principal Accounting policies (continued)
{t) Creditors

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including bank
loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.,

(u) Financial instruments

The Group only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition of
financial assets and liabilities like trade and other accounts receivable and payable and loans from banks
and financial institutions,

Debt instruments (other than those whaolly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans and
other accounts receivable and payable, are initially measured at the present value of the future cash
flows and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest methed. Debt instruments that are
payable or receivable within one year, typically trade payables or receivables, are measured, initially and
subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration, expected to be paid or
received. However if the arrangements of a short-term instrument constitute a financing transaction, like
the payment of a rental arrear deferred beyond normal Group terms or financed at a rate of interest that
is not a market rate or in case of an out-right short-term loan not at market rate, the financial asset or
liability is measured, initially, at the present value of the future cash flow discounted at a market rate of
interest for a similar debt instrumeant and subsequently at amortised cost.

Financial assets are derecognised when contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or
when the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only once the liability has been extinguished through discharge,
cancellation, or expiry.

3.  Judgements in applying policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions
which affect reported income, expenses, assets, and liabilities. Use of available information and
application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates, together with past experience and
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
in the future could differ from such estimates.

The members of the Board of Management consider the following fo be critical judgements in preparing
the financial statements:

- The categorisation of housing properties as property, plant and equipment in line with the
requirements of the SORP;

- The amount disclosed as 'operating surplus' is representative of aclivities that would normally be
regarded as ‘operating”, and

- The identification of a cash-generating unit for impairment purposes,

30



CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

3.  Judgements in applying policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The Board of Management are satisfied that the accounting policies are appropriate and applied
consistently. Key sources of estimation have been applied as follows:

Estimate

Valuation of housing properties

Useful lives of property, plant and eguipment

The main components of housing properties and
their useful lives

Fecoverable amount of rental and other trade
receivables

The abligations under the SHAPs and the
Strathclyde defined benefit pension schemes

The valuation of investment properties

Basis of estimation

Housing Properties are held at deemed cost which
is based on an existing use valuation at the date of
transition to FRS 102 of 1 April 2014,

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are based on the knowledge of senior
management at the Group, with reference to
expected asset life cycles,

The cost of housing properties is split into
separately identifiable components. These
components were identified by knowledgeable and
experienced staff members and are based on
costing models.

Rental arrears and other trade receivables are
reviewed by appropriately experienced senior
management team members on a case by case
basis with the balance outstanding toaether with
the payment history of the individual tenant being
taken into account.

This has relied on the actuarial assumptions of a
qualified actuary which have been reviewed and
are considered reasonable and appropriate,

The investment properties were valued by an
appropriately qualified surveyor using market data
at the date of valuation.
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

4.  Particulars of turnover, operating expenditure and operating surplus

2022 2021 Restated
Operating Operating Oparafing Operaling
Group Turnover Expenditure Surplus Tenower Expendifuira Surplus
E £ E £ E £
Affordable [ettings (nole 5a) 19,615,504 16,761,043 2,754,461 19,082,322 16,562,970 2.4848,352
Other activities (note Ba) 1,963,024 1,846,638 106,380 2017307 1,686 814 30,487
Cairn Homes and Services Limited* 193,822 259,941 163,881 195,747 25151 170,596
21,662,354 18,637,622 3,024,732 21,275,370 18,274,835 3,000,435

2022 20
Operating Operating Oparaling Operating
Association Turnover Expenditura Surplus Turnowar Expeandifune Surphus
E £ E £ £ E
Affardable latings (nate Sh) 16,666,336 14,740,884 1,815,452 16,127,353 14,720,231 1407122
CHhar activities (nole 8h) 2,240,529 1,006,360 434,169 21273687 1,608 178 510,189
18,796,865 16,547,244 2248621 18,254,720 16,328,409 1826311

*this is affer ramaval of infergroup charges for consalidation purposes
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CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Sa. Particulars of turmover, operating expenditure and
operating surplus or {deficit) from affordable latting
activitios

Group

Rant recelvable nel of sendcs charges

Service charges nel al vaids

Gross incoma fram rents and service charges
Less: Rental voids

Net income from rents and service charges
Refease of defemad capltal govemment gran
Granda fram the Scotlish Ministars

Othar revenus geanls

Tatal tumnover from affordable letting activities

Managamenl and mainlenance adminksiration costs
Sanvice cosls

Planned and cyclical mainlanancs

Responsive mainlenance cosls

Bad dab previsian

Wiite: alfs

Hon-refundable rem

Impairmeant

Dapreciation of affardabie housing

Operating expendilure for affardable letting activities
Operating surplus or {deficit] for affordable lettings 2082
Oparaling surplus for affardable loiings — 2021

Humber of units in managemant;
2022

22

Included in depreciation of afordable housing |= £410,693 (2021; £71,062) relating ta the loss on disposal of companeants,

Ganaral
Heeds Amenity Sheltered Supported Sharad
Housing Housing Hausing Housing  Ownership 2022 2021
E £ E E £ E i
13,878,763 1,561,853 1,983,021 T4,628 82,843 17,550,808 17123650
283,700 558,482 1,060,235 53,184 4,687 1,960,272 1,881,868
14,182,463 2120115 3,013,260 127,812 07,530 18,611,180 19 105578
{H17,934) {80,313) (79,601) 14,714} - {362,562) (518,477
13,944 529 2,069,802 2,933,668 123,098 BT,E30 19,148,518 18,585,341
240,808 - . - . 248,605 104, 777
74,812 13,246 17,722 160 1,054 107,081 aT1.204
, 4,277 5,723 - - 10,0400 -
14,268,248 2,077,325 2,857,104 123,248 B8, 581 19,815,504 19,062 322
4,167,346 737,444 SH6,670 8,362 88,521 5,958 403 6445807
264,01 623,676 1,063 148 1,820 6738 1,959,411 2,201,808
798,208 132,921 177,84 1,507 10,548 1,118,016 a5, 498
2,556,248 205,598 515,880 4,371 30,503 3,491,704 2,763,581
144,035 BE,904 278,945 334 - 509,218 403,307
107,212 14,085 18,8587 160 = 140,324 159,618
- - - - r (2,778)
2 i * - - . 7ag, 268
1,701,855 A6 EED 454,541 4,191 13,732 3,583,871 2,598,030
10,734,833 2,352,039 3,532,872 0,748 120,153 16,764,043 16,562,870
3,534,213 [275,014) (575, 768) 102,602 (31,572) 2,754 481
3,220,357 {226,500 438,375 [25,359) (30, 269) 2,458,352
3,001 441 590 5 k1 4,072
2,883 440 ] 19 ad 3980




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Bb.  Particulars of wmover, operating expenditure and
operating surpbus or (deficit) from affordable letting
activities

Association

Rent receivable el of servica charges

Sarvioe charges nel of volds

Gross Income from rents and service charges
Less: Rantal valds

Ned incame from rents and service charges
Releage ol deferred caphal govemmand grant
Grants from the Scattish Minishers

Oithar revenue grams

Tatal iwrmover from affordable letting activities

Management and maintenance adminisralion cosks
Sarvica costs

Planned and cyclical maniemsance

Responsive mankanance costs

Bad dabt provision

Wil affs

MNon-rafundable rent

Impairment

Depracation of atordable housing

Operating expanditure for affordable letting activities
Operating surplus or (deficil) for alfordable letlings 20232
Opaaing surples for affordable laitings — 2021

Mumber of units In managamant:
2022

a2

Genaral
Neads Aty Shelterad Supportad Sharad
Housing Housing Housing Housing  Ownership 2022 2021
E E £ £ E E i
10,910,663 1,561,663 1,253,021 74,628 82,843 14,582 808 14, 168,758
204,700 550,462 1,060,230 53,184 4,587 1,960,272 1,087,568
11,194,353 2,120,115 A.013,260 127,812 a7,530 16,543,080 16, 150667
|208,470) 160,313) [Ta,801) 14,714) - {353,098) (A58, TE3)
10,985 493 2,058,802 2,833,859 123,098 a7.529 16,189,982 15,857,904
249,273 - - 2 = 248,273 104,245
T4,812 13,246 17,722 180 1051 107,081 37204
- 4,277 5,723 . - 10,000
11,310,078 2,077,325 2,857,104 123,248 ag, 581 16,856 336 18,127,353
3,510,686 TaT 494 586,670 8,362 58,531 5,310,743 & 646, 548
264,031 623,678 1,063,146 1,820 B, 738 1,859,411 2201808
701,982 132,921 177,831 1,507 10,543 1,024,790 840, 406
2,006 416 385,509 515,880 4,372 0,603 2,972,870 2300670
144 035 6,904 275,945 34 - 508,218 403,307
80,831 14,005 18,857 160 - 113,843 137,640
- s - . - + {778
. = = : i . Fan 298
1,967,783 368,860 494,543 4,18 13,732 2 849,809 2,384,052
8,714,774 2,352,339 3,522,872 X, T46 120,163 14,740,884 14,720,231
2,588,204 (278, 014) (575, T848) 102,502 [31,572) 1,815,452
PAIMAFT (296,507 (438,378 {25, 358) {30, 265) 1,407,122
2,329 441 Ll 5 35 3400
2221 40 San 19 38 3,308

Included in depreciation of seclal housing (s £208,808 (2021 45,971) ralating 1o the loss on disposal of components.
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Ba.  Particulars of turnover, operating expenditure and operating surplus or (deficit) from ather activities

Group
Operating Oyperating
Granis fram Oither Supparting Crperating Other surplus ar surplus oF
Scottlsh Ravenue People Other Total Expenditure aperating [deticit) [dafizit}
Ministers Grants Incoma Incame LV bad debls expenditure w022 20
E E E £ E £ E E E

Care and repair of
property 404, BE1 - . 41,945 442,804 - ITBATT 64,320 11,365
Wider role 30,78 - - . 3, 7e . 30,450 344 10,507
Commarcial rent from
investmant proparties - - - 793,054 793,059 G28,528 167,51 182 230
Denvelopment and
canstriction of property
aclivitles - - . - - - - . -
Support aclivities e - 5,222 . 43,143 - 28,455 14,688 {35,439}
Cara activilies - - - . - - - - -
Facioring activities - - - 143,572 143,672 - 43,011 50,561 131,554
Service charge admin
rechangs - = = 7,081 7051 - - 7,051 a5 812
Third party recharge
cosls - - - 20,398 20,398 - 20,395 - 22 199
WSSE salas - - - 388,800 184,800 - 388,800 - -
Oithar aclivities - - - 83,411 B3 411 - 281,502 [198,111] 27 531
Total from other
activities 2022 464,673 . 5,222 1,478,213 1,463,024 - 1,846,638 106,380
Total from other
activities 2021 474,682 33,194 A2 256 1,452 189 2017301 2158 1,884 658 330 487

The ather sctivity headings as nated in The Scoltish Housing Regulator's Determination of Accounting Requirements (2019) do not apply.
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&b,  Particulars of lurnover, operating expenditure and operating surplus or (deficit) from ather activities

Association

Care and repair of
property

Cammaearcial reni fram
invastment properies
Davalopment and
construction of property
activities

Suppont activitles
Care activiliss
Factoring aciivities
Sarnvice charge admin
recharge

Third party rechange
coals

NSSE sales

Oither activities

Tatal from othar
activities 2022

Total fram other
activities 2021

The other activity headings as noted in The Scottish Housing Regulater's Determin
Included in other activities is @ management charge of £50,000 (2021 £50,000),

Cparating Operating
Grants from Oihar Supporting Ogparating Cithar surplus or surplus or
Scottish Revenus Paople Other Total  Expencilure - oparating {deficit) {deficit}
Ministers Grants Incoma Income turmover bad debls  expenditure i 2021
£ E E E E £ E £ E
400,881 - 41,945 442,806 ITBATT 64,328 11,368
- 847,834 84T 854 - 25,5248 222387 238, 500
- 5222 - 5,222 - - 5222 |22, 558)
2 - 52,209 82,250 - 88,404 3,895 A6, 584
- - 7.061 1081 - 7,051 35412
- - 43,629 43,620 = 43,629 = 45, 444
- 88,800 388,800 = 388,800 - .
= - 412,828 412,828 = 261,522 131,308 163,143

400,881 - 5222 1,834 446 2,340,529 - 1,808,360 434,168
A0, 156 33,184 52,256 1637721 2127967 2,158 1,606,020 519,185

ation of Accounling Requiraments (2018) do not apply.
recharged payroll coals of £1684,132 (2021: £96,116) and recharged IT costs af

£47,380 (2021: Enil) to ANCHO Limited, gift aid income of £100,000 {2021; £61,341) from Cairm Homes and Sarvices Limited with nao Jok retention grant daimed in

the year (2021: £48,952),
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7a. Employees - Group 2022 2021
£ £
Staff costs during year:
Viiages and salaries 4,569,025 4,669,308
Sacial security costs 445,001 436,000
Pension costs 664,397 G648 941
Defined benefit pension charge — SHAPs (Note 23) Pension
Admin cost 18,000 21,000
Pension costs — Strathclyde Pension Scheme 71,000 52,000
Death in service 45,814 43,994
Accrued holiday pay 338,674 328,143
Agency costs 37,917 62,014
Redundancy and compensation payments (including NI) 69,394 138,953
Staff recruitment costs 37,648 33,217
6,289,870 6,433 570

During the year past service deficit contributions of £551,753 (2021 £633,372) were paid net of £18K
(2021: £21K) of administration expenses.

2022 2022 2021 2021
Ave FTE Ave FTE

No. Mo. Mo Mo,
Average weekly number and the full time equivalent (FTE)
employees of the Association including staff on an agency
basis during the year was
Office staff 109 104 106 94
HomeWorks staff 15 13 15 15
Housing managers and ather staff 67 29 70 35
191 146 181 144




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

7b. Employees —Association
Staff costs during year:

\Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Death in service

Defined benefit pension charge — SHAPs (MNote 23) Pension

Admin cost

Accrued holiday pay

Agency costs

Redundancy and compensation payments (including NI)
Staff recruitment costs

During the year past service deficit contributions of £551,753 (2021, £633,372) were paid were paid net

of £18K (2021: £21K) of administration expenses,

Average weekly number and the full time equivalent (FTE)
employees of the Association including staff on an agency
basis during the year was

Office staff
HomeWoarks staff
Housing managers and other staff

2022 2021
£ £
4,306,180 4,332,116
418,812 401,215
630,250 604,247
45,814 27,420
18,000 21,000
336,303 325,425
37,917 31,924
69,394 113,058
37,648 33,217
5,900,318 5,889,622

2022 2022 2021 2021
Ave FTE Ave FTE
No. MNo. Mo, Mo,
109 104 106 94
13 11 13 13
61 23 &1 26
183 138 180 133
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Ba. Directors’ emoluments — Group

The directors are defined as the members of the Board of Management, the Chief Executive and any other
person reporting directly to the Chief Executive or the Board of Management. The Association considers key
management personnel to be the Board of Management and the senior management team of the Group anly.

2022 2021
E £
Aggregate emoluments payable to all the officers earning > £60k) (excluding
pension contributions and redundancy payments) amounted to: 638,891 266,221
Redundancy payments to officers who eamed > £60k (this is in addition to
the above) - 104,018

Total pension payments to officers earning = £60K was £75,726 (2021 £28,468). This does not take into
account any past service deficit payments.

Total emoluments paid to key management persannel including Eer Nl was £542 317 (2021, £514, 786). There
were no redundancy costs to any members of the key management team (2021; £129,913 to two members),

Total emoluments payable to the Chief executive (excluding pension
contributions) amounted to: 115,768 115,095

The numbers of officers including the highest paid Officer who received Number Number
emoluments (excluding pension contributions and including redundancy
costg) in the following ranges were:

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £80,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£160,001 - £170,000

o= by
B e G

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Group's pension scheme described in Mote 23. The
Association’s contributions for the Chief Executive in the year amounted to £12,979 (2021: £12,914),

2022 2021
E £
Aggregate emoluments payable to the Chairperson & Vice Chairperson
amounted to: 7,545 7,500
£ E
Total Board of Management expenses reimbursed in so far as not chargeable to
United Kingdom Income Tax 715 94




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

8b. Directors' emoluments —Association

The directors are defined as the members of the Board of Management, the Chief Executive and any other
persan reporting directly to the Chief Executive or the Board of Management. The Association considers key
management personnel to be the Board of Management and the senior management team of the Group only.

2022 2021
E £
Aggregate emoluments payable to all the officers earning > £60k) (excluding
pension contributions and redundancy payments) amounted to: 638,801 266,221
Redundancy payments to officers who earned = £60k (this is in addition
to the above) - 104,018

Total pension payments to officers earning > £60k was £75,726 (2021: £29,468). This does not take into
account any past service deficit payments.

Total emoluments paid to key management personnel including Eer Nl was £542 317 (2021: £451,213). There
were no redundancy costs to any members of the key management team (2021: £129,913 fo two members).

Total emoluments payable to the Chief executive (excluding pension
contributions) amounted ta: 115,768 115,095

The numbers of officers including the highest paid Number Number
Officer who received emoluments {excluding pension contributions and
including redundancy costs) in the following ranges were:

£60,001 - £70,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£160,001 - £170,000

P == o L
A

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Group's pension scheme described in Note 24. The
Association's contributions for the Chief Executive in the year amounted to £12, 979 (2021: £12,814).

2022 2021
£ £
Aggregate emoluments payable to the Chairperson & Vice Chairperson
amounted to: 7,545 7,500
£ £
Total Board of Management expenses reimbursed in so far as not
chargeable to United Kingdom Income Tax 651 94
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9. Operating surplus
Operating surplus is stated after charging;

Group

Depreciation:

- charge

- loss on disposal of compaonents
Auditor's remuneration;

- External audit services

- non-audit services

- internal audit services
Operating lease rentals

Association

Depreciation:

- charge

- loss on disposal of components
Auditor's remuneration:

- External audit services

- non-audit services

- internal audit services
Operating lease rentals

10. Gain on sale on property, plant and equipment

Group and association

Gain on shared ownership tranches
Gain on Retirament Court sales
Zain on other fixed assets

2022 2021

£ £
3,428,493 2,826,968
410,593 71,062
39,863 35,680
451 4,400
19,699 19,152
742,569 936,596
2,894,161 2,338,081
206,809 45,971
23,673 21,000
451 4,400
19,699 19,152
721,573 915,600
2022 2021

£ £

(5,239) 43,218

4 100,000

. 64,135

(5,239) 207,353
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11. Interest receivable
Group

Interest receivable on bank deposits
SHAPS — interest received (note 23)

Association

Interest on group loans to ANCHO
Interest receivable on bank deposits
SHAPS — interest received (note 23)

12. Interest payable and similar charges

Group

On bank loans

SHAPS - finance cost (note 23)

Strathclyde Pension Scheme — finance cost (note 23)
Bank charges

Association

On bank loans
SHAPS - finance cost (note 23)

13. Taxation
Group

2022 2021

£ E

ar 112 128,503

- 5000

7112 134,503
2022 2021

E £

51,240 48,015
36,838 128,436

- 5000

88,079 183,451
2022 2021

£ &,
2,665,233 3,233,099
38,250 -
11,000 8,000
1,906 873
2,716,388 3,241,972
2022 2021

£ £
2,573,772 3,131,967
38,250 -
2,612,022 3,131,967

The Assaciation is a Scattish Charity and no liability to Corporation Tax arises on its charitable
activities in the year. Corporation tax is due on the profit generated by Cairn Homes and Services

Limited in 2021/22.

Corporation Tax due on other activities (Cairn Homes and Services

Limited)

Deferred tax provision {Cairn Homes and Services Limited)

Association

Carporation Tax due on other activities

2022
E

2,849
(76)

2,173

2022
£

2021
E
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14a, Tangible fixed assets and investmants

{a) Housing properties
Group

Cost or valuation

Al the starl of the year
Additions during year

- properies

- naw developments

- improvemants o existing property

Transfer

Transfer to mvesiment properties
Diaposals during year

- propertiss

- replaced componants

Al tho end of the year

Depraclation

At the slart of the year

Charge far year

Transfar

Transfar o investment propertiss
Digposals during year

- properlies

- replaced componenis

At the end of the year

Mot book valua
AL 31 March 2022

Al 31 March 2021

Housing Praperties
held for

letting

E

139,876,415

2,661,806
18,486,337
{1,102,100)
(520,084)
159,492,373
16,775,813
3,168,107

{122,684)

(108,491)
18,701,745

139,790,628

123,200, 602

_—

Sharad Qwnaership
held for

letting

£

823,489

{17,301}
(26,432)
779,756

96,127
12,996
(2,007}

{3,152)
103,964

675,792

————

727,362

Housing Properties
in the course of
construction

£

16,380,130

18,989,441
(18,488,337)

16,883,234

16,883,234

15,380,130

Housing
Properties
Total

£

166,180,004
19,989,441
2,651,505
(17,301}
{1,102,100)

(26,432)
{520,084)

177,155,363
16,671,940
3,171,103
{2,007)
{122,684)

{3,162)
{108,481)

19,805,709

157,349,664

139,308,094
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14b. Tangible fixed assets and investments

{b) Housing properties
Association

Cost or valuation

At the start of the year

Additions during year

- properies

- new developments

= improvements to existing property
Transfer

Transfer to Invesiment propertes
Dizposals during year

- properties

- raplaced componanis

At the end of the year

Depreciation

Al the start of the year

Charge for yaar

Transfar

Transfer to investment proparies
Disposals during yaar

- properiies

= replaced componens

Al the end of the year

Met book value
At 31 March 2022

Al 31 March 2021

Housing Properties
held for letting

£

114,792,699

1,256,100
18,486,337
{1,102,100)
(252,857)
133,180,179
13,243,463
2,627,820

L] :1,5:3;].

[46,048)
15,702,660

117,477,618

101,549,236

Shared Ownership Housing Properties

held for letting

823,489

{17,301}
126,422)
779,786

96,127
12,906
(2,007)

{3,152)
103,964

675,792

727,362

in the course of
construction

£
15,380,130

19,989,441

(18,486,337)

16,883,234

16,883,234

15,380,130

Housing
Proparties

Total
£

130,806,318

19,989,441
1,256,100
{17,301}
{1,102, 100)

(26,432)
{252,857)

150,843,169

13,338,690

2,640,825
{2,007)
{122,684)

(3,152)
{46,048)

16,806,624

136,006,645

117,666,728
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

14 a/b. Tangible fixed assets and investments (cont'd)
Group

Total cost of replacement components (capitalised maintenance) for the year amounted to £2,651,805 (20271;
£1,124,334). The amount spent on maintenance of housing properties held for letting can be seen in note 5a.

Additions to Housing Properties during the year includes £nil capitalised interest (2021 £nif) and E£nil
capitalised administration costs (2021: £nif). All housing properties are freehold.

Included in freehold housing properties is land with a historic cost allocation of £20,083,444 (2021:
£17 423,897).

The housing properties were revalued as at 1 April 2014 (by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited) on an existing value
basis and this value was used as the deemed cost from that date in accordance with FRS 102,

Association

Total cost of replacement components (capitalised maintenance) for the year amounted to £1,256,100 (2021;
£642 608). The amount spent on maintenance of housing properties held for letting can be seen in note 5b.

Additions to Housing Properties during the year includes Enil capitalised interest (2021: £nil) and Enil
capitalised administration costs (2021 £nif). All housing properties are freehold.

Included in freehold housing properties is land with a historic cost allocation of £17,087 787 (2021:
£14,418,240).

The housing properties were revalued as at 1 April 2014 (by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited) on an existing value
basis and this value was used as the deemed cost from that date in accordance with FRS 102,
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14. Tangible fixed assets and investments (cont'd)

Restated

14 (c) Investment properties 2022 2021
Group £ £
At 1 April as restated 8,187,576 8 173 548
Component additions during year 69,910 14,028
Property disposals during year (2,275) -
Transfer from housing properties 979,416 -
Gain on revaluation 11,797 -
9,246,424 8,187,576

Investment properties are accommadation, offices and garages leased to 3" parties. The turnover and
operating expenditure in relation to these properties is disclosed in Note 6a. There are 344 (2021: 330)

investment properties.

The investment properties were revalued as at 17 August 2022 (by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited) in
accordance with FRS 102.

The minimum lease payments receivable in respect of leases in relation to investment properties are due
within one year. This amounted to £1,045,853 (2021: £1,222,993).

Restated

14 (d) Investment properties 2022 2021
Association £ £
At 1 April as restated 7,600,456 7,586,428
Component additions during year 69,910 14,028
Property disposals during year {2,275) -
Transfer from housing properties a79,416 -
Gain on revaluation 263,917 -
8,911,424 7,600,456

Investment properties are accommodation, offices and garages leased to 3™ parties. The turnowver and
operating expenditure in relation to these properties is disclosed in Note 8b. There are 165 (2021: 151)

investment properties,

The investment properties were revalued as at 17 August 2022 (by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited) in
accordance with FRS 102,

The minimum lease payments receivable in respect of leases in relation to investment properties are due
within one year. This amounted to £798 986 (2021. £705,323).
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14. Tangible fixed assets and investments (cont'd)

14 (e) Other fixed assets

Group

Cost

At starl of year
Additions during year
Disposals

At end of year

Depreciation

At start of year
Provided during year
Disposals

At end of year

Net book value
At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

14 (f) Other fixed assets
Association

Cost

At start of year
Additions during year
Disposals

At end of year
Depreciation

Al starl of year
Provided during year
Disposals

At end of year

Net book value
At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

Heritable
Office
Property
£

777,265
892,002
(1,460)

867,807

250,662
14,997
(767)

264,892

602,915

526,603

Heritable Office

Office
Furniture and Fixtures and Other Fixed
Equipment Fittings  Assets Total
£ £ £
2,165,839 - 2,943,104
137,916 - 229,918
(85,604) - (87,064)
2,218,151 - 3,085,958
1,444,577 - 1,695,239
242,393 - 257,390
(B5,604) - (86,371)
1,601,366 - 1,866,258
616,785 - 1,219,700
721,262 - 1,247,865
Office
Furniture and Other Fixed
Property Equipment Assets Total
£ £ E
697,001 2,058,683 2,755,684
87,895 137,916 225,811
- (85,604) (85,604)
784,896 2,110,995 2,895,891
227,994 1,352,675 1,580,669
13,108 240,228 253,336
- (85,604) (85,604)
241,102 1,507,299 1,748,401
543,794 603,696 1,147,490
706,008 1,175015

468,007

47



CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

14. Tangible fixed assets and investments (cont’d)

14 (g) Investments 2022 2021
Association £ £

Investment in subsidiary undertaking;
Cairn Homes and Services Limited 1 1

Cairn Housing Assocciation Limited owns 1 ordinary £1 share in Caim Homes and Services Limited
(SC341478). The investment is held at cost. This represents a 100% shareholding in Cairn Homes and
Services Limited, a company registered in Scotland, whose principal activity is the rental of housing units at
mid-market rent. Cairn Homes and Services Limited made a profit of £72,149 (2021 £73,172) for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and had net assets of £22,138 (2021: £45,989).

The Association's other subsidiary is ANCHO Limited. ANCHO Limited made a surplus of £647 630 {2021:
£866,569) for the year ended 31 March 2022 and had net assets of £16,094, 981 (2021: £14,845,352).

15. Debtors due after more than one year 2022 2021
Association £ £
Amounts owed by subsidiary 1,460,000 1,460, 000

1,460,000 1,460,000

The loan to ANMCHO is a fixed interest loan and is repayable on the 25" anniversary of the date of the first
advance which was 27 September 2018. The interest rate is 3.5% per annum,

16. Debtors due within one year 2022 2021
Group E E
Rent arrears 747,542 859,064
Less: provision for bad debts (437,106) (517,519)
310,436 341,545
Prapaymeants and accrued income 2,400,637 467,186
Other debtors 164,735 804,209
Factoring arrears 21,480 26,035

2,807,288 1,638,975




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

16. Debtors due within one year {cont'd)

Association 2022 2021
£ £

Rent arrears 629,403 722,610

Less: provision for bad debts (339,987) {419,524)
289,416 303,086

Amounts owed by subsidiary 397,812 36,575
Prepayments and accrued income 2,325,286 327 686
Other debtors 116,755 724,824
3,129,269 1.392 171

17a. Cash and cash equivalents 2022 2021
Group £ E
Deposit accounts = 3 months 3,629,281 228,064
Current account 28,067,710 6,936,737
31,696,991 7. 164 801

Overdraft - (412, 579)
31,696,291 6,752 222

2022 2021

Association £ £
Deposit accounts < 3 manths 3,094,582 404
Current account 27,795,097 6,672 272
30,889,679 68,672 676

Overdraft - {412 5678)

30,889,679 6,260,097

17h. Investments 2022 2021

Group & Association £ £

Deposit accounts = 3 months 36,917 10,219,497

36,917 10,219,497
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18. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group

Bank overdraft

Housing loans due in less than 1 year (note 20)
Other loans

Trade creditors

Retentions

Prepaid rents and service charges

Accruals

Other taxes and social security

Deferred Government capital grant (note 22)
Corporation tax

Other creditors

Secured creditors

Association

Bank overdraft

Housing loans due in less than 1 year (note 21)
Other loans

Trade craditors

Retentions

Amounts owed to subsidiary

Prepaid rents and service charges

Accruals

Other taxes and social security

Deferred Government capital grant (note 22)
Other creditors

Secured creditors

2022 2021

E i

- 412,578
1,198,561 1,203,051
21,490 "
2,460,111 81,0789
185,857 -
1,010,789 641,857
2,175,808 2,838 507
128,301 4,031
249,805 104,777
812,497 16,114
8,243,219 5,302,095
1,198,561 1,615,630
2022 2021

E E

- 412,578

702,168 715518
21,490 -
2,075,263 28,712
185,857 e

1 1

840,842 484,217
2,079,671 2,673,152
128,301 3,968
249,273 104,245
795,085 -
7,077,951 4,433,383
702,168 1,128,088
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19. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group

Housing loans (note 20)

Defarred Government capital grant {note 22)
Other loans

Retentions

Other creditors

Secured creditars

Association

Housing loans (note 21)

Deferred Government capital grant (note 22)
Other loans

Retentions

Other creditors

Secured creditors

2022 2021

3 E
96,806,852 75,281,797
30,536,541 20,890,451
86,044 -
487,045 -
77,150 i
128,083,632 86,272,248
96,906,852 75,281,797
2022 2021

E %
92,124,425 70,001,812
30,513,685 20,867,063
86,044 -
487,045 =
77,150 -
123,288,349 80,068,875

92,124,425

70,001,812
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20. Loans 2022 2021
Group E £

Loans or mortgages secured by charges on the Group's housing properties.

Loans advanced by:

Private lenders 98,105413 76,484 848
Amounts falling due in:

One year (note 18) 1,198,561 1,203,051
One year or maore but less than two years (note 19) 1,207,316 1,211,912
Two years or more but less than five years (note 19) 3,684,841 3,754,004
Five years ar more (note 19) 92,014,695 70,315,881

98,105,413 76,484,848

The loans are advanced to finance the development and refurbishment of housing properties and are

repayable by quarterly instalments of principal and interest. The loans bear interest at rates between 1.49%
and 5.87%.

The Group's lenders have standard securities of the Social Housing Units and investment properties with a
carrying value of £103,000,113.

In 202021, Cairn Housing Association restructured the loan portfolio, settling some longstanding loans with
Santander, The costs associated with breaking these loans are detailed below:

2022 2021

£ £

Term Loan Breakage Costs - 2,339,597
Commitment Feea - 3 244

- 2,342,841




CAIRN HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED
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21. Loans 2022 2021

Association £ £

Loans or mortgages secured by charges on the Association's housing properties:

Loans advanced by:

Private lenders 92,826,593 70,717,331

Amounts falling due in:

One year (note 18) 702,168 715519

One year or more but less than two years (note 19) 702,168 715,519

Two years or more but less than five years (note 13) 2,113,236 2,146,557

Five years or mare (note 19) 89,309,021 67,139,736
92,826,593 70,717,331

The loans are advanced to finance the development and refurbishment of housing properties and are
repayable by quarterly instalments of principal and interest, The loans bear interest at rates between 2.10%

and 5.87%.

The Association's lenders have standard securities of the Saocial Housing Units and investment properties

with a carrying value of £85,738,319.

In 2020/21, Cairn Housing Association restructured the loan portfalio, settling some longstanding loans with

Santander. The costs associated with breaking these loans are detailed belaw:

2022
£

Term Loan Breakage Costs -
Commitment Fee o

2021
£

2,339,587
3,244

2,342 841
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22. Deferred capital grants

Group

Deferred capital grants 1 April
Grants received in year

Grant released in year
Dispasal in year

Deferred capital grants 31 March

Split: <1 year
1-2 years
2-5 years
= b years
Tatal
Association

Deferred capital grants 1 April
Grants received in year

Grant released in year
Disposal in year

Deferred capital grants 31 March

Split; <1 year
1-2 years
2-5 years
> 5 years
Total

2022 2021
£ £
21,095,228 11,772,990
10,078,436 9,427,015
(249,805) (104,777)
(137,513) -
30,786,346 21,095,228
249,805 104,777
249,805 104,777
749,815 314,331
29,536,921 20,571,343
30,786,346 21,005,228
2022 2021
£ £
21,071,308 11,748,538
10,078,436 9,427,015
(249,273) (104,245)
(137,513 -
30,762,958 21,071,308
249,273 104,245
249,273 104,245
747,819 312,735
29,516,593 20,550,083
21,071,308

30,762,958
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association

(i} Defined Contribution Scheme

On 31 March 2014 the Association moved its pension provision from a defined benefit scheme via the
Scottish Housing Associations' Pension Scheme to a defined contribution scheme via the Scotlish Housing
Associations’ Pension Scheme and Standard Life.

61 members of staff are members of the Scoltish Housing Association's Defined Contribution Pension
Scheme. This scheme was closed to new entrants on 1 April 2014, The assets of the scheme are
administered by The Pensions Trust and are independent of the Association.

The contributions paid in respect of the Scottish Housing Association's Defined Contribution Pension
Scheme are variable with the maximum employer contribution of 12%,

65 members of staff are members of the Standard Life Group Personal Pension Scheme. This scheme is
used for auto enrolment as well as being open to new members. The assets of the scheme are administered
by Standard Life and are independent of the Association.

The contributions paid in respect of the Standard Life Group Personal Pension Scheme are variable with the
maximum employer cantribution of 10%.

(ii) SHAPS defined benefit scheme

Cairn Housing Association Limited participated in the Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (the
scheme). Cairn Housing Association Limited has elected to operate the Defined Contributions Option far
existing members, with this defined benefit scheme closed ta new members from 1 April 2014. However,
the Association is still required to fund the past service deficit liahility.

The scheme is a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to over 150 non-associated employers.
The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. With effect from 1 April 2021, the pension scheme is
accounted for under FRS102 as a defined benefit schame.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on
30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial
Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit
occupalional pension schemes in the UK,

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement’. Therefore, the Association is potentially liable

for ather participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme

deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share
of the scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.,
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association [continued)

The SHAPS defined benefit pension liability is accounted for as a defined benefit pension scheme. In
accordance with FRS 102 section 28, the operating and financing costs of pension and post retirement
schemes (determined by TPT) are recognised separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Service costs are systematically spread over the service lives of the employees and financing costs are
recaognised in the period in which they arise. The difference between actual and expected returns on assets
during the year, including changes in the actuarial assumptions, is recognised in Other Comprehensive

Income,

Present values of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit liability

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit liability to be recognised

31 March 2022
£'000

20,829
(20,841)

(12)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation at start of period

Current service cost

Expenses

Interest expensa

Actuarial gain/(loss) due to scheme experience

Actuarial gain/{loss) due to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gain/(loss) due to changes in financial assumptions
Benefits paid and expenses

Defined benefit liability at the end of the period

Year ended
31 March 2022
£'000

(21,875)

[1-‘;}
(470)

1,100
422

(20,841)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of the period

Interest income

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest inc
- gain

Contributions by the employer

Benefits paid and expenses

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Year ended
31 March 2022
£'000

19,866
432
383

570
(422)

20,829

31 March 2021
£'000

19,866
(21,875)

(2,009)

Year ended
31 March 2021
£'000

(18,359)
(2 ;J'
{431)
125

(3,667)
478

{21,875)

Year ended
31 March 2021
£000

18,245
438
1,009

654
(478)

19,866
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association (continued)

Defined benefit costs recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended
31 March 2022
£'000
Current service cost -
Admin expenses 18
Met interest expense a8
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive
Income 56
Defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Period ended
31 March 2022
£'000
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 383
interest cost - gain
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities —
(loss)/gain (555)
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit abligation - (loss) {72)
Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit cbligation — gain/{loss) 1,727
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income —
actuarial (loss)/gain 1,483

Year ended
31 March 2021
£000

21
(5)

16

Period ended
31 March 2021
£'o000

1,008

125

(3,667)

(2,533)
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association (continued)

Fund allocation for employer's calculated share of assets

Global Equity

Absolute Return
Distressed Opportunities
Credit Relative Value
Alternative Risk Premia
Fund of Hedge Funds
Emerging Markets Debt
Risk Sharing
Insurance-Linked Securities
Property

Infrastructure

Private Debt

Opportunistic Liquid Credit
High Yield

Opportunistic Credit

Cash

Corporate Bond Fund
Liquid Credit

Long Lease Property
Secured Income

Over 15 Year Gilts

Index Linked all stock gilts
Liability Driven Investment
Currency Hedging

MNet Current Assets

Total Assets

31 March 2022
£'000

4118
955
747
668
860

775
679
437
540
1,300
524
690
202
73

58
1,317
133
600
1,113
8

5,040
(76)
67

20,829

31 March 2021
£000

3073
878
679
573
797

801
710
415
356
1,109
468
509
521
543
7
1,498
343
461
1,091
9

4,776
148

19,866

The main financial assumptions used by the Scheme Actuary, TPT, in their FRS 102 calculations are as follows:

Assumptions as at

Discount rate
Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)
Salary growth

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

31 March 2022
% per annum

2.79

3.57

3.19

419

75% of
maximum
allowance
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association {continued)

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2022 imply the follawing life expectancies:

Male retiring in 2022
Female retiring in 2022
MWale retiring in 2042
Female retiring in 2042

Member data summary
Active membars
Males
Females
Total
Deferred members
Males
Females
Total
Pensioners
Males
Females

Total

Employer debt on withdrawal

Following a change in legislation in September 2005 there is a potential debt on the employer that could
be levied by the Trustee of the Scheme. The debt is due in the event of the employer ceasing to
participate in the Scheme or the Scheme winding up. The debt for the Scheme as a whole is calculated
by caomparing the liabilities for the Scheme (calculated on a buyout basis i.e. the cost of securing benefits
by purchasing annuity policies from an insurer, plus an allowance for expenses) with the assets of the

Number

20
32
52

Number

28
56
84

Number
27

58
B6

Total earnings
(£'000s p.a.)
868
989
1,857

Deferred pensions
(£'000s p.a.)
101
133
234

Pensions
(E'000s p.a.)
143
263
406

Scheme. If the liabilities exceed assets there is a buy-out debt,

Life expectancy
at age 65
(years)

21.6
23.9
22,9
25.4

Average age
{unweighted)
52
52
52

Average age
(unweighted)
53
54
53

Average age
{unweighted)
70
73
72
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association (continued)

The leaving employer's share of the buy-out debt is the proportion of the Scheme's liability attributable to
employment with the leaving employer compared to the total amount of the Scheme's liabilities (relating
to employment with all the employers). The leaving employer's debt therefore includes a share of any
‘orphan’ liabilities in respect of previously parficipating employers. The amount of the debt therefore
depends on many factors including total Scheme liabilities, Scheme investment performance, the liabilities
in respect of current and former employees of the employer, financial conditions at the time of the cessation
event and the insurance buy-out market. The amounts of debt can therefore be volatile over time.

The Association has been notified by TPT of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from the Scheme
based on the financial position of the Scheme as at 30 September 2021. As of this date the estimated
employer debt for the Association was £11,312,285.

{iii) Strathclyde Pension Fund

ANCHO Limited contributes to Strathclyde Pension Fund administered by Glasgow Council, a defined
benefit scheme, which is externally funded and contracted out of the State Earnings-Related Pension
Scheme. The assets of the scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. The pension costs
are assessed with the advice of independent qualified actuaries, using the projected unit method. The
date of the valuation was 31 March 2022.

The assumptions and other data that have the most significant effect on the determination of the
contribution levels of the scheme are as follows:-

2022
Inflation / Pension Increase Rate 3.15%
Salary scale increases per annum 3.85%
Discount rate 2.75%
The estimated split of assets in the scheme and expected rate of return were:-

2022
Equities 61%
Bonds 26%
Property 11%

Cash 2%
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association (continued)

Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

Males Females
Current pensioners 19.6 years 22.4 years
Future pensioners 21.0 years 24.5 years
2022 2021

£ £
Estimated employer asset share 5,178,000 4,862 000
Present value of scheme liabilities {5,178,000) (5,482,000)
Present value of unfunded liabilities - -
Total value of liabilities (5,178,000) {5,482,000)
Net Pension (Liability) - (520,000)
Analysis of amount charged to operating surplus 2022 2021

E
Service costs (105,000) (98,000}
Employers' contributions 34,000 46,000
Total operating charge {71,000) (52,000)

2022 2021

Analysis of amount credited to other finance income £ £
Interest Income on Plan Assels 102,000 97,000
Interest on pension scheme liabilities {113,000) {105,000)
Total Net interest (11,000) (8,000]
Total defined benefit cost in Total Comprehensive Income (82,000) (60,000)
Analysis of recognised Comprehensive Income 2022 2021

£ £
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 119,000 958,000
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities (12,000) 113,000
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present 463,000 (1,330,000
Changes in demographic assumptions 32,000 146,000
Actuarial gain/(loss) in pension plan recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income 602,000 {113,000)
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23. Pension scheme — Group and Association (continued)

Movement in pension deficit during the year 2022 2021
£ £
Deficit at the beginning of the year {520,000) {347,000)
Current service cosl (105,000) {98,000)
Employers contributions 34,000 46,000
Net returns on assets {11,000) (8,000)
Actuarial gain/(loss) 602,000 {113,000)
Deficit at the end of the year - {520,000)
24. Deferred tax 2022 2021
£ £
At beginning of the year 76 76
Charged to profit or loss (in respect of Cairn Homes and
Services Limited) (76) A
At end of year - 76

The deferred taxation balance is made up as follows:-

2022 2021
£ £
Fixed asset timing differences 4 75
At end of year - 78
25. Share capital 2022 2021
£ E
Group and Association
Shares of £1 each issued and fully paid
At 1 April 2021 88 88
Issue of shares during the year 2 -
Cancelled during the year (5) -
At 31 March 2022 85 88

Each member of the Association holds one share of £1 in the Association. These shares carry no
rights to dividend or distributions on a winding up. When a shareholder ceases to be a member, that
persan's share is cancelled, and the amount paid thereon becomes the property of the Association.
Each member has a right to vote at members' meetings. Called up share capital on the Statement of
Financial Position has been adjusted to reflect the number of shares held by active members,
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26. Reserves

The revenue reserve includes all current and prior year retained surpluses or deficits.

27. Net cash inflow from operating activities
Group

Surplus/{deficit) for the year
Adjustment for non-cash items

Taxation charge

Depreciation charges including loss on disposal of components
Impairment charge

Increasel/(decrease) in creditors

{Increase)/decrease in debtors

Share capital cancelled

Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals and investment
properties

SPF — Finance cost

SPF - staff costs

Amortisation of RBS arrangement fee

Gain on revaluation of investment properties

Adjustments for investing or financing activities

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets
Release of deferred government grants
Interest payable

Interest receivable

Loan breakage costs

Met cash inflow from operating activities

Resfated

2022 2021

£ E
349,241 (2,242 522)
2,773 -
3,829,086 3174, 647
- 799 298
3,B67,698 {318,123)
{1,258,313) 1,033,563
(5) -

26,248 83,226
11,000 8000
71,000 52 000
78,875 20,000
(11,797) -
(21,009) {280,579)
{387,318) {104, 777)
2,716,388 3,241,972
(37,112) (134,503)

- 2,342 841
9,248,755 7,665043
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27. Net cash inflow from operating activities (continued)

Association 2022 2021
£ £
Surplus/deficit for the year (15,644) (3,157,693)
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation charges including loss on disposal of compaonents 3,100,970 2,655 171
Impairment charge - 799,298
Increase in craditors 3,612,481 202 458
Decreasef{increase) in debtors (1,737,088) 945837
Share capital cancelled (5) -
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals and investment
properties 25,555 82,995
Amortisation of RBS arrangement fee 78,875 20,000
Gain on revaluation of investment properties (263,917) -
Adjustments for investing or financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets (20,316) {290,348)
Release of deferred Government Grants (386,786) (104,245)
Interest payable 2,612,022 3,131,967
Interest receivable (88,079) (183,451)
Loan breakage costs - 2,342,841
Met cash inflow from operating activities 6,918,060 6,444,930

28. Payments to members, Board members and Key Management

Group

Remuneration paid to members of the Association during the year were £7 545 (2021: £7,500). Members of
the Board of Management were reimbursed for out of pocket travel and accommodation expenses amounting
to £715 (2021: £94).

Some members of the Board of Management are tenants of the Association. The tenancies of these Board
Members are on normal terms and the members cannot use their position to their advantage.

The total rent and service charge payable in the year relating to tenant Board members is £nil (2021: £7,388).
The total remuneration (including pension contributions and benefits in kind) paid to Key Management who

are deemed to be the Executive Officers was £542 317 (2021 £574,786). In addition, there was redundancy
costs of Enil (2021: £129,813).
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28. Payments to members, Board members and Key Management (continued)

Association

Remuneration paid to members of the Association during the year were £7,545 (2021: £7,500), Members of
the Board of Management were reimbursed for out of pocket travel and accommodation expenses amounting
to £651 (2021: £94).

There are no members of the Board of Management that are tenants of the Association.

The total rent and service charge payable in the year relating to tenant Board members is £nil (2027; £3,878),

The total remuneration (including pension contributions and benefits in kind) paid to Key Management who
are deemed to be the Executive Officers was £542 317 (2021; £451,213). There were no redundancy costs

(2021 £104,018)

29. Capital commitments

2022 2021

Group £ £
Contracted 28,604,921 17,328,051
Approved but not contracted for 1,676,390 -
30,281,311 17,328,051

This is to be funded by:

Private finance 21,999,295 12 836,511
Grants 8,282,016 4,391,540
From reserves - -
30,281,311 17,328,051

2022 2027

Association £ £
Caontracted 27,879,921 15,727, 801
Approved but not contracted for 1,676,390 -
29,556,311 15,727,801

This is to be funded by:

Private finance 21,274,295 11,336,261
Grants 8,282,016 4,391 540
From reserves - -
29,556,311 15,727 801
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30. Revenue commitments

Group
At 31 March 2022 the Association had fotal future minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as set out below:

Land & Land &
Group Buildings Other Buildings Other
2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Within a year 108,700 76,519 109,599 107,249
Within 2-5 years 281,148 33,145 350 874 -
After 5 years 63,385 - 358 874 -
453,233 109,664 829 347 107,249

Land & Land &
Association Buildings Other Buildings Other
2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Within a year 89,070 76,108 89,969 105,883
Within 2-5 years 281,148 33,145 359,874 -
After 5 years 63,385 - 359,874 -

433,603 109,254 808,717 105,883

31. Prior Year Restatement

In & group combination, when the net assets of the entity being acquired are higher than the acquisition cost,
negative goodwill is created as part of the consclidation of the group financial statements, being the difference
between the net assets and the acquisition cost. This negative goodwill is then amortised aver its expected
useful life,

When ANCHO joined the Cairn Housing Association Group on 1 November 2018, there was negative goodwill
of £12,699 545 recognised as part of the consolidation, which was the net assets of ANCHO as at 31 October
2018. This was then being amortised over 5 years with this amortisation recognised as a credit (a gai) in the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income each year. £6,138,113 has been amortised as at 31 March 2021
to leave unamortised goodwill of £6,561 432,

However, as this was a combination of public benefit entities which meets the definition of a gift, the negative
goodwill of £12,699,539 should have been recognhised as a credit (a gain) in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income in full in the year ended 31 March 20189. Therefore, a prior year adjustment has been
recognised within the Group financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, This in effect accelerates
the release of the negative goodwill and increases the net asset position of the Cairn Housing Association
Group.

The investment properties were held at market value on the basis of vacant possession. However, after
consideration, a more appropriate basis should be existing use value social housing EUV-5H (where
properties are built for a specific purpose) and market value subject to tenancy MV-T for other investment
properties. This has been corrected via a prior year adjustment as at 1 April 2020, which has the effect of
reducing the net assets as at 1 April 2020 by £1,896,246,
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31. Prior Year Restatement (continued)

Impact on the Group financial statements

Total Total
comprehensive comprehensive
income for the income for the
year ended year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£ E
As previously stated (2,348,611) 6,646,623
Prior year adjustment
Recaognition of gift on acquisition of ANCHO N -
Reversal of negative goodwill amortisation (2,539,909) (2,539,909)
ANCHO share movement {2) 8
(4,888,522) 4,106,722
Capital and Capital and
reserves at reserves at
1 April 2021 1 April 2020
£ E
As previously stated 58,999,038 61,347,649
Prior year adjustment
Recognition of gift on acquisition of ANCHO 12,699,539 12,699,539
Rewversal of negative goodwill amortisation (6,138,113) (3,598,204)
ANCHO share movement 6 8
Change in revaluation basis for investment
properties (1,896,246) (1,896,246)
63,664,224 68,552,746
Impact on the Association financial statements
Capital and Capital and
reserves at reserves at
1 April 2021 1 April 2020
£ £
As previously stated 50,662,357 56,353,050
Prior year adjustment
Change in revaluation basis for investment
properties {1,896,246) (1,896,246)

48,766,111

54,456,804

a7
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32. Post balance sheet events

On 1st April 2022, Pentland Housing Association Limited formally transferred their engagements to Cairn
Heusing Association Limited. The housing stock and tenants of Pentland have now successfully transferred
and services to customers in Caithness is being delivered by the new combined team.

From 1st April 2022, the Group now includes Pentland Community Enterprises Limited (FCE) including the
significant garage porifolio in Caithness. On 1% April 2022, the trade and assets of Cairn Homes and Services
Limited were transferred into PCE. Cairn Homes and Services Limited will now be struck off,
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